






      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 2, 2021 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 2, 2021 

 
The Middleton City Council meeting on June 2, 2021 was called-to-order at 5:31 p.m. by Mayor 
Rule.  
 
Roll Call: Mayor Rule, Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins, Garner and O’Meara 
were all present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: Rodger Hawker 
 
Action Items 

A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the Agenda as posted May 28, 2021 
at 5:00 p.m. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously. 

 
Information Items: 

1. N. Middleton Rd/Cornell St Roundabout construction and traffic control plan 
update. – Rachel Speer 
 
Mayor Rule called the item and City Staff Engineer Rachel Speer gave an update on the 
construction. All emergency services and other agencies that would be affected by this 
construction and detour plan have been notified well in advance. The construction is 2 days 
in on the 90-day project and going well.  
 

Action Items 
Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 

a. Consider approving minutes for City Council May 19, 2021 regular meeting. 
b. Consider ratifying May 21, 2021 payroll in the amount of $109,931.02. 
c. Consider approving accounts payable thru May 12, 2021 in the amount of      

$161,462.68 
 
Mayor Rule called the items. Council President Kiser gave a summary of accounts payable 
payments. Nothing is out of the ordinary. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser approve Consent Agenda Items 1a, b and c. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Garner and approved unanimously. 
 
2. Consider accepting the 2020 Audit Findings as presented by Zwygart John & 
Associates, PLLC – Jordan Zwygart  
 
 Mayor Rule called the item Jordan Zwygart presented the 2020 Audit Report. The report 
showed a good and clean audit, and he said City Treasurer Wendy Miles and City 
Administrator Becky Crofts did a very good job on the audit. Mayor Rule noted that Wendy 
has done a good job getting all the reconciliations cleaned up that were neglected prior to 
her coming to the City. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to accept the 2020 Audit Findings as presented 
by Zwygart John & Associates, PLLC. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and 
approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 2, 2021 Page 2 
 

3. Consider adopting Ordinance 647: Bridger Creek Annexation: AN ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO R-3 (SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL) AND COMPLETING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; DIRECTING 
THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Becky Crofts 
 

Mayor Rule called the item and City Administrator Becky Crofts explained this is a 
housekeeping item since the annexation was approved at the last council meeting. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to waive the 3-reading rule for Ordinance 647.   
Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 
 
Council President Kiser read the Ordinance by title only. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to adopt Ordinance 647: Bridger Creek 
Annexation: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, 
ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
SITUATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; 
ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO R-3 
(SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) AND COMPLETING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; 
DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara 
and approved unanimously. 

 
4. Consider approving Non-Aerial Fireworks vendor permit from Outlet Fireworks, 
LLC for dates 6/23/2021-7/05/2021. – Becky Crofts 
 

Mayor Rule called item and City Administrator Becky Crofts presented the application. It 
has been reviewed by the Middleton Rural Fire District and Deputy Chief Islas submitted his 
comments and approval.  

 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve a Non-Aerial Fireworks vendor permit 
from Outlet Fireworks, LLC for dates 6/23/2021-7/05/2021. Motion seconded by Council 
Member Garner and approved unanimously. 

 
5. Consider approving Sawtooth Lake Drive and Middleton Road Roundabout Plans 

and Specifications by Precision Engineering, LLC – Joel Grounds. 

Mayor Rule called the item and Joel Grounds from Precision Engineering presented the 

plans specifications for the Sawtooth Lake Drive and Middleton Road Roundabout. This will 

be a 5-leg intersection and once final design and plans are submitted the project will go out 

for bid.  

Mayor Rule said as part of this project the constructed wetlands that are currently on the 

southwest corner of Sawtooth Lake Dr. and S. Middleton Rd. will need to be moved. This is 

part of the reason the city needs to purchase wetland credits. Moving the wetlands will allow 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 2, 2021 Page 3 
 

for parking access finally giving Middleton residents access to the Boise River, which is part 

of an overall plan to create several different access points to the Boise River all connected 

with a nice walking trail. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Sawtooth Lake Drive and Middleton 
Road Roundabout Plans and Specifications by Precision Engineering, LLC. Motion 
seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved unanimously. 
 
6. Consider approving purchase agreement from the Wetlands Group LLC in the 
amount of $54,450.00 to purchase wetland credits necessary to construct the 
Sawtooth Roundabout. – Becky Crofts 
  

Mayor Rule called the item and City Administrator Becky Crofts explained that this is to 
purchase credits to create wetlands (required by the EPA) in another area once the 
wetlands that are on the corner of the Sawtooth Roundabout are removed. This is funded 
through the Transportation Fund. The city is trying to get projects shovel ready so that when 
funding comes in, it can be immediately applied and taken advantage of.  

 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser approve purchase agreement from the Wetlands 
Group LLC in the amount of $54,450.00 to purchase wetland credits necessary to construct 
the Sawtooth Roundabout. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved 
unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 
 
7. Consider approving letter to LHTAC for construction of Phase II S. Cemetery Road 
and agreement to pay costs above the currently obligated project cost. – Becky 
Crofts 
 
 Mayor Rule called the item and City Administrator Becky Crofts explained this is exactly 
what she has been talking about when a project needs additional funding. Mayor Rule and 
she wrote a letter to the COMPASS Board and explained that this project has been on the 
books for 15 years and it needs to move forward. It is projected to be short from federal 
dollars, the city does not have the budget for it and are requesting 1.3 million dollars. That 
money showed up in a timely fashion. So now the city has the budgeted amount plus the 1.3 
million dollars. Then once a project is funded it goes forward and gets bid. The city got into a 
real favorable bidding climate. The project came in under the Engineers estimate (that left 
some projected additional funding). S. Cemetery Road is built in 3 phases. Phase 1: 
Federally funded. Phase 3: Water Crossing. This is now complete. Phase 2: Picks up where 
phase 1 ends which is just behind the Middle School and finishes the connection to 
Sawtooth Lake Dr, over the bridge and to the connection. Phase 2 was always a local 
project and always city funded. It was a requirement that if we accepted funding that we 
completed phase 2 quickly (usually within a couple of years) As the bids came in lower there 
is a projected $300K-$325K additional funds that now the city can apply to Phase 2. 
Realistically and according to the engineers estimates it looks like the project can be 
completed for that money. The project funded the entire road which saved the city 
about$400K. 

The letter to LHTAC says that the city is pleased with phase 1. It has been 
communicated that there could possibly be an additional $300K-$325K available for phase 
2. We understand it is an estimate. The city is requesting that LHTAC move forward with the 
construction of phase 2 with these estimated dollars, however if for some reason it doesn’t 
fully cover the anticipated project, the city agrees to pay those overages.  

 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 2, 2021 Page 4 
 

 Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve letter to LHTAC for construction of 
Phase II S. Cemetery Road and agreement to pay costs above the currently obligated 
project cost. Motion seconded by Council member O’Meara. 

 
 Discussion: Mayor Rule said the stars have aligned, but there was a bunch of hard work by 

staff to get those stars aligned. Last year when council authorized the road construction by 
Lurre Construction. This construction has caused that 40–80-ton vehicles have travelled all 
along this road last winter. If there was a serious problem out there it really would be 
identified. In his opinion 4-6 months of that kind of traffic has really compacted and made an 
excellent base. Lurre Construction deserves credit, they dug it out and built it properly too. 

 
 Mayor Rule called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 
 
8. Consider instructing legal counsel to draft a complaint challenging the legality of the 

City of Star annexation of land within the City of Middleton Area of Impact. – Mayor 
Rule 
 
 Mayor Rule said this has been discussed during previous meetings to some point. The 
City of Star ambitions to annex much farther into the City of Middleton Impact Area. They 
are crossing an impact area that was set in 2001 to Can-Ada Road. The City legal counsel 
says that is not appropriate. Star believes they have a legal loophole. It will be a problem for 
a few more months. Part of this is yet another positioning tactic to draft the complaint letter. 
City Attorney Mark Hilty explained that within the last couple of weeks the city prepared a 
letter and sent it to the City of Star and copied Canyon County, basically saying Star needs 
to stop their annexation activity. That letter did suggest that perhaps a discussion could be 
had. There was also a letter from Canyon County that was directed to Star and Middleton 
indicating further that that annexation activity needed to stop, but that the County would 
entertain impact area negotiation with Star. The letter did express concurrence and 
sympathy with Middleton’s position regarding the legality of those annexations. But it also 
indicated there would be a discussion on impact area between the County and Star, and 
that they would come up with a line and if that line encroached on any of Middleton’s Impact 
Area (west of Can-Ada Rd) the County Commissioners are saying they would expect that 
Middleton would be involved immediately when that occurred. There has been this notion 
that there will be some type of negotiation in the near future. He thinks it is prudent to 
prepare the complaint and have it ready to go, but not file/serve the complaint until we see 
what position Star is going to take in those negotiations. It puts the city in a better position to 
move forward, while still giving peace a chance.  
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to have legal counsel to draft a complaint 
challenging the legality of the City of Star annexation of land within the City of Middleton 
Area of Impact. Motion seconded by Council Member Garner and approved unanimously by 
Roll Call Vote. 
 

Public Comment:  

Mike Graefe: His concerns were covered. Council and the City are doing a great job.  

Jim Grey – 23557 Duff Lane: The traffic on Duff Lane is getting increasingly busier. He wants 

the speed limit being dropped down from 50 mph to 35 mph. There needs to be a right turn lane 

out of Duff. He was also saddened to not see anyone from the City or Council at the Memorial 

Day ceremony at the cemetery.  



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting June 2, 2021 Page 5 
 

Mayor Comments, Council Comments:  

Council President Kiser: Very concerned about the Skate Park at Piccadilly Park. The kids have 

vandalized and taken off the metal lettering that is the address of the park. They also leave 

trash all over. He is very upset that the Public Works staff spends 1-2 hours every morning 

cleaning up after the kids who have left the park. He is tired of the complaints on Facebook from 

kids and adults about the trash, graffiti, vandalism, vaping, smoking, and bullying. He wants to 

close the skate park, not the splash pad or market, for a period of time to help those who use it 

understand how serious the city is. “If you pack it in, you should pack it out.”  He said it really is 

ok for people not to come if they are not willing to obey the rules. He has talked with City Staff 

and wanted to let the other council members know this may be a reality, so he did not want 

them surprised when they got phone calls. 

Mayor Rule: Asked how the city closed the skate park last time. Becky Crofts said they taped it 

off with caution tape, police officers monitored it, it was also announced on the city website, 

Facebook page, and other community Facebook pages. The behavior of those using the skate 

park did change. She is supportive of doing it again.  

Council Member O’Meara: The Middleton Rural Fire Department just had a “pushing ceremony” 

where they pushed their new rig ($604K Fire Engine) into the barn. They are also opening a 

second facility on Kingsbury so there will be 2 open fire stations. He also agrees with Council 

President Kiser about the trash problem. GMPRD has closed the parking lot at Foote Park as 

well as the water fountain due to the construction of the roundabout. He is also still working the 

Viper Park lease and should have some information to bring to the council in an upcoming 

meeting.  

 Adjourn: Mayor Rule adjourned the city council meeting at 6:50 p.m. 

 

 

 

             
ATTEST:      Steven J. Rule, Mayor  
 
      
Jennica, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: June 16, 2021 







 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
Middleton City Council 

 
 

 

 

Stonehaven – 11+ acre Commercial Parcel  
Rezone & Development Agreement Modification 

 

                                  
 

A. City Council Hearing Date: June 16, 2021 

 
B. Application Request and Project Description:    Request for Rezone and 

Development Agreement Modification of 11 acre parcel adjacent to the Stonehaven 
Subdivision (Tax Parcel No. 34443013 – 0 Hartley Lane.)  Applicant is requesting 
rezone from C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to M-F Multi-Family for 7.3 acres of the 11 
acres.  The remaining 3.7 acres are to remain C-1 along the frontage of Willis Road. 
 
Applicant is also requesting a modification to the current Development Agreement to 
allow future preliminary plat and development of up to 84 townhomes in the M-F zone. 
Applicant has submitted a concept plan showing the potential future development of 
townhomes & commercial lots.  

            



             
        

2 
 

 
C. History and Current Zoning:  This property was the subject of an earlier rezone and 

development agreement application in 2012. The property was zoned R-3 at that time, 
and applicant requested to have the property rezoned to C-1.  C-1 zoning is 
“Neighborhood Commercial”, and it is a less intensive commercial use that services 
local neighborhoods.  This would include dental offices, light retail, and service 
businesses such as a fitness gym…etc. 
 

D. Property Condition:  Since the time of the 2012 rezone to C-1, the property has 
remained vacant land with no commercial development. The parcel is surrounded on 
the north, east, and south sides by R-3 zoning and single-family homes. To the west is 
a large church parcel.  
 

                        
 

E. City Services:  City water and sewer are already located down the center of the 
parcel. Additionally, services are located immediately to the south of the parcel in the 
Stonehaven Subdivision.   

 

                                  
 
 
 

R-3 

R-3 

R-3 

R-3 

C-1 



             
        

3 
 

F. Traffic, Access & Streets:  Access to the subdivision is via Willis Road and also 
through the Stonehaven Subdivision to the south. The street improvements are 
already completed on the interior portions of the 11 acre+ parcel, but the frontage 
improvements to Willis Road are unfinished. 
 

G. Development Agreement:  A 2012 Development Agreement already exists with 
respect to this property.  Applicant is requesting a modification to add the following 
provisions and delete existing conditions in conflict with these seven provisions.  
 

a. 7.3 acres of the total 11 acres to be rezoned M-F Multi-Family. The remaining 
3.7 acres to remain C-1 zoning. 

b. Developer to improve the parcel as generally shown in the Concept Plan to be 
attached to the modified DA. 

c. Developer may develop up to a maximum of 84 townhome lots, defined in the 
Middleton City Code as “Single Family Attached” in the M-F zoned portion of 
the parcel. 

d. Any future preliminary plat application must include a special use permit 
application for townhomes in compliance with MCC 5-4-1 Table 1. 

e. Developer will be required to submit a Traffic Study at the time development 
improvements begin.  The Traffic study will include the intersections of Willis & 
Hartley and Hartley & Hwy 44, and any other intersections the City Engineer 
deems necessary. 

f. Upon development, the Developer will improve all street frontages and dedicate 
improved right of way to the City. 

g. Upon development, the Developer will pay all proportionate share traffic fees as 
determined by the Traffic Study and City Engineer. 
 

 
H. Findings Required to Approve or Deny the Applications:  Per Middleton City Code 

1-14-2, the City Council must make a reasoned statement explaining the basis for their 
decision. If the City Council chooses to deny the applications, City Council must 
identify what Applicant can do to gain approval.  

 
In making this reasoned statement with respect to the Rezone/Modified DA 
applications, Council must specifically consider the following: 
 

1. Does the rezone/DA Mod have a demonstrably adverse effect on the 
delivery of City services (sewer & water)?   
 

2. Is the Rezone/DA Modification “in conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan or 
“in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan?  If it is in conflict, then the 
applications should be denied. If it is in harmony, then the applications 
should be approved. 

 
Because City services are already on site, the City Council is left with considering only 
whether the rezone is in conflict with the Comp Plan or in harmony with the 



             
        

4 
 

Comprehensive Plan.  To decide this, Council should look to the Goals and Strategies 
outlined in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan.  Planning Staff finds that the Rezone/DA 
Modification is both “in conflict” and “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
decision of the Council may come down to how much weight and consideration the 
Council gives to the “contending” Goals. 
 
For instance, the Comprehensive Plan has Goals to promote commercial 
development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents. (Goals 
7 and 8 in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  In light of these goals, the rezone/DA Mod 
may be in “conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan because it is substituting townhomes 
for commercial uses. 
 
However, the Comprehensive Plan also calls for (1) a variety of housing types and lot 
sizes, (2) multifamily and higher density housing near schools, transit stations and 
commercial areas, and (3) buffers between commercial and residential uses. (Goals 4 
and 11 of the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  In this instance, the Rezone/DA 
Modification would appear to be “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Again, the decision may come down to how much weight Council gives to one “Goal” 
over another “Goal.” 
 

I. Planning & Zoning Findings: At the May 10, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission, 
the Commission denied the applications for rezone and development agreement 
modification. Minutes from the Meeting are attached this Staff Report. 

 
J. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None. 

 
K. Comments from Agencies: A May 7, 2021 analysis from COMPASS found that the 

mix of residential and commercial uses can mitigate the impact of increased traffic.   
 
A July 8, 2021 email from Black Canyon Irrigation stated that the District requires an 
easement for their ditches, and proper irrigation and drainage must be provided. 
 
A June 6, 2021 analysis from ITD found that the proposed subdivision of 82 
townhomes will impact the intersection of Hartley Road and Highway 44, which is 
already deemed a “failing” intersection and in need of a signal control.  ITD estimates 
the cost of the signalized intersection of Highway 44 and Hartley Lane is $1,181,233. 
 

L. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on April 5, 2021. The 
Applicants are Todd Campbell & Jay Walker P.O. Box 140298, Boise ID 83714.  
 

M. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 
      

Newspaper Notification     05/30/2021 
 

 Radius notification mailed to 



             
        

5 
 

 Adjacent landowners within 300’    05/28/2021  
 

 Circulation to Agencies     05/28/2021  
 
 Sign Posting property     05/28/2021 

 
Neighborhood Meeting     03/16/2021 
 

N. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  
Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65 
Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, and 5-4. 
 

O. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
The City Council is tasked with issuing a reasoned statement for its denial or approval 
of Applicant’s Rezone & DA Modification applications. Specifically, City Council must 
determine whether the application requests are “in conflict” or “in harmony” with the 
Middleton Comprehensive Plan.   
 
If the Council decides to deny the applications, State law requires the Council to 
identify what measures, if any, Applicant can take to gain approval. 
 
If Council is inclined to approve the applications, Planning Staff does not recommend 
any conditions of approval because any provisions that are necessary for future 
development are contained in the DA and/or handled by City Codes and Standards. 

 
 

Prepared by Middleton City Planner, Robert Stewart    Dated: 6/9/2021 



APPENDIX 



















































































 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, May 10, 2021  Page 1 of 3
  
 

MIDDLETON CITY PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

MAY 10, 2021 
 
The May 10, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting was called to order by Chairman 
Ray Waltemate at 5:33 p.m.  
 
Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call: Chairman Ray Waltemate, and Commissioners Jackie Hutchison, Janet Gregory, 
Kip Crofts and Whitney Springston were present.  
 
Information Items:  
  

Action Items 
1. Consent Agenda 

a. Consider approving April 12, 2021 regular meeting minutes. 
 
Chairman Waltemate called the consent agenda items and asked for any questions or 
changes to the minutes.  
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Springston to consent agenda items A-D. Motion 
seconded by Commissioner Gregory and approved unanimously. 
 

 
  

2. Public Hearing: Applications from Falkirk Holdings LLC & Todd Campbell for 
Rezone and Development Agreement with respect to the Stonehaven project planned 
for an 11.18 acre parcel located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel #34443013). Applicant is 
seeking a rezone of a portion of the parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit the future 
development of a maximum of 84 townhome lots 
 
Chairman Waltemate opened the Public Hearing at 5:45 p.m. 
 
City Planner, Roberta Stewart presented the Staff Report (See Exhibit 1) 
 
Chairman Waltemate called for the applicant presentation at 6:02 p.m. 

• Jay Walker—Representative for Falkirk Holdings, LLC & Todd Campbell: Mr. Walker 
gave  a presentation on the proposed Rezone & Development Agreement (See 
Exhibit 2) 

• Todd Campbell—took questions on the project from the commission and answered 
questions regarding the properties.  The cost would be $300,000-400,000 per unit 
with the final product being in the mid-$400,000 range. The unit size would range 
from 1500-2400 sq ft.  The yard size would comply with Middleton City Code.  The 
yards would be private fenced yards for each unit. 

Questions from Commission: 
• Springston—Timeline? Answer: applicant is prepared for immediate turnaround with the 

preliminary plat and design. The goal is to provide homes for smaller families and the 
elderly to fill a demand. 

• Gregory— 
o Setbacks—how will the requirement of 10 feet be met? Answer: there is a 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, May 10, 2021  Page 2 of 3
  
 

proposed 12 foot setback which will be a total of 24 feet between buildings.  
o Traffic Studies for Hartley? Answer: traffic is projected to decrease with the move 

from commercial to residential. 
• Waltemate—Is the road is going to remain a commercial collector? Answer: there is no 

proposed changes to the road with this proposal. 
 
Chairman Waltemate opened the public comments at 6:29 p.m. 
 

• Shawn Maybon of 1382 La Reata Way—lives near Willis and Hartley. Mr. Maybon 
spoke in opposition to the proposal.  He stated the high density zoning would have a 
negative impact on traffic, sewer, water and water pressure.  The buffer of an 8 foot 
berm already exists.   He doesn’t believe this proposal is consistent with the 
comprehensive plan of the city. 

• Mike Graefe of 1889 Ridge Way in West Highlands.  Mr. Graefe spoke in opposition 
of the proposal and mirrored the concerns brought forth by Mr. Maybon. He indicated 
that he is not a fan of townhouses. Two plus vehicles per home would have a 
tremendous impact on the traffic in the area.  He can’t see the vision of how a 
roundabout would work in that area.  He also feels that the right of way on both sides 
of a street should be equal. 

• Sandy Sinclair of 1871 Ridge Way in West Highlands.  Ms. Sinclair spoke in 
opposition of the proposal.  She agreed with all that Mr. Maybon and Mr. Graefe 
stated.  She is totally against high-density housing in that area. 

• Peggy Souza of 12576 Cowboy Lane (outside city limits). Ms. Souza spoke in 
opposition.  She stated that traffic is already a problem in the area from the school 
and homes.  Crowding people into little spaces is going to be a big problem.  
Crowding roads and areas that are already crowded. 

 
      Chairman Waltemate closed the public comment at 6:45 p.m. 
 
 Discussion: 

• City Planner, Roberta Stewart went on record stating that the city has not approved or 
disapproved of this proposal. 
 

Motion: Motion by Commissioner Gregory to deny application from Falkirk Holdings LLC & 
Todd Campbell for Rezone and Development Agreement with respect to the Stonehaven 
project planned for an 11.18-acre parcel located at 0 Hartley Lane (Tax Parcel #34443013). 
Applicant is seeking a rezone of a portion of the parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit the future 
development of a maximum of 84 townhome lots. Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Hutchinson and approved unanimously. 

Chairman Waltemate closed the public hearing at 7:15 p.m 
 
It was moved by Chairman Waltemate to close the meeting at 7:17 p.m. Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Springston and unanimously approved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, May 10, 2021  Page 3 of 3
  
 

 
 
 
             
 
ATTEST:       Ray Waltemate, Chairman  
 
      
Rhonda Case, Deputy Clerk 
Approved: June 7, 2021 



Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 Development Review 
 

The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan planning organization 
(MPO) for Ada and Canyon Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local governments to 
evaluate whether land developments are consistent with the goals of Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 (CIM 2040), 
the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be 
prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based on CIM 2040 2.0 goals. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Recommendations 

The proposal provides a mix of residential and commercial which can mitigate the impact of increased traffic. There 
are no plans for public transportation to this location.  
 
 

 
 

 

 

More information about COMPASS and Communities in Motion 2040 2.0: 
Web: www.compassidaho.org 
Email info@compassidaho.org 
More information about the development review process:  
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm 

Development Name: Campbell      Agency: Middleton 

CIM Vision Category: Existing Neighborhoods 
 
New households: 82   New jobs: ±50   Exceeds CIM forecast: 

 
 

Farmland contributes to the local economy, creates 
additional jobs, and provides food security to the region. 
Development in farm areas decreases the productivity 
and sustainability of farmland.  
 

Farmland consumed: Yes 
Farmland within 1 mile: 920 acres 
 

Housing within 1 mile: 930 
Jobs within 1 mile: 210 
Jobs/Housing Ratio: 0.2 
 

Nearest bus stop: >4 miles 
Nearest public school: 0.1 miles 
Nearest public park: 1.5 miles 
Nearest grocery store: >4 miles 
 
 

CIM Corridor: N/A 
Pedestrian level of stress: None 
Bicycle level of stress: None 
 

A good jobs/housing balance – a ratio between 1 and 
1.5 – reduces traffic congestion. Higher numbers 
indicate the need for more housing and lower numbers 
indicate an employment need. 

Residents who live or work less than ½ mile from 
critical services have more transportation choices. 
Walking and biking reduces congestion by taking cars off 
the road, while supporting a healthy and active lifestyle.   
 

Level of Stress considers facility type, number of vehicle 
lanes, and speed. Roads with G or PG ratings better 
support bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and comfort 
levels.  
 

Nearest police station: 1.4 miles 
Nearest fire station: 2.4 miles 
 

Developments within 1.5 miles of police and fire 
stations ensure that emergency services are more 
efficient and reduce the cost of these important public 
services.   

http://www.compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm


From: Carl Hayes
To: Jennica Reynolds; "Canyon County Paramedics"; "Carl Miller"; "Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen"; "ITD -

Development"; "ITD - Sarah"; "Julie Collette"; "Middleton School District"; "zoninginfo@canyonco.org";
"permits@starfirerescue.org"

Cc: Roberta Stewart
Subject: RE: Notice of Public Hearing CC - Campbell Rezone/DA
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 8:09:43 AM

Our only facility in this area is already piped, but we will require that any easements on this property
be recorded on the final plat and that irrigation be provided along with any necessary drainage.
 
Thank you,
 
 

 
 
 

From: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 28, 2021 11:04 AM
To: 'Canyon County Paramedics' <MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; 'Carl Miller'
<cmiller@compassidaho.org>; 'Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen' <MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; 'ITD -
Development' <D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov>; 'ITD - Sarah'
<Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov>; 'Julie Collette' <gmprdjulie@gmail.com>; 'Middleton School District'
<csanderson@msd134.org>; 'zoninginfo@canyonco.org' <zoninginfo@canyonco.org>; Carl Hayes

mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:MStowell@ccparamedics.com
mailto:cmiller@compassidaho.org
mailto:MYbarguen@idahopower.com
mailto:D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov
mailto:D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov
mailto:Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:csanderson@msd134.org
mailto:zoninginfo@canyonco.org
mailto:permits@starfirerescue.org
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com


<carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com>; 'permits@starfirerescue.org' <permits@starfirerescue.org>
Cc: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com>
Subject: Notice of Public Hearing CC - Campbell Rezone/DA
 
Please see the attached Public Hearing Notice for City Council.
https://middleton.id.gov/PublicHearingNotices
 

Best,
Jennica Reynolds
Administrative Deputy Clerk
City of Middleton
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 
 

https://middleton.id.gov/PublicHearingNotices
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


 

 
  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
 
 
 

June 7, 2021 

 

 
Roberta Stewart 

City Planner 

1103 West Main Street 

Middleton, Idaho 83644 

 

VIA EMAIL 

 

Development 

Application REZONE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT MODIFICATION 

Project Name STONEHAVEN SUBDIVISION 

Project Location Southwest corner of Hartley Lane and Willis Road, north of SH-44 milepost 2.81 

Project 

Description 

Rezone of a 11.18 acre parcel from C-1 to M-F to permit future development of 82 

townhome lots and modification of existing development agreement for Stonehaven to 

allow for rezone 

Applicant Falkirk Holdings LLC & Todd Campbell 

 

The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) reviewed the referenced rezone and development agreement 

modification applications and has the following comments: 

 

1. This project does not abut the State Highway system.  

 

2. ITD and the City of Middleton have entered into an interagency agreement to collect proportionate 

share from new developments to mitigate traffic impacts from incoming developments. Proportionate 

share for each development is calculated based off of number of trips added to State Highway system. 

The number of trips generated can be determined using the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 

Trip Generation Manual. ITD requires trip distribution information to determine where trips generated 

by developments access the State Highway system.   

 

3. No trip distribution information was provided; without trip distribution information ITD must assume 

the worst case scenario that all trips generated will utilize the Hartley Lane/ SH-44 intersection. The 

proposed subdivision is adding 46 trips to Hartley Lane/SH-44 intersection in the PM Peak at buildout, 

and 38 trips in the AM Peak. Proportionate share is based on the average AM and PM site trips through 

the intersection of SH-44/ Hartley Lane which is approximately 2.88% percent of the traffic utilizing 

the intersection in 2021. The intersection has been documented as failing and is in need of 

signalization. ITD has already agreed with the City of Middleton that a signalized intersection is the 

preferred improvement. The construction of the cost of design and construction of a future signal at 



 

 
  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
 
 
 

SH-44/Hartley Lane with northbound and southbound left turn lanes, a northbound right turn lane, and 

eastbound and westbound right turn lanes is approximately $1,181,233 (see attached). The applicant 

will only be responsible for contributing their proportionate share of $34,020 (2.88%).  

 

4. Idaho Code 40-1910 does not allow advertising within the right-of-way of any State Highway. 

 

5. The Idaho Administrative Procedure Act (IDAPA) 39.03.60 governs advertising along the State 

Highway system.  The applicant may contact Justin Pond, Right-of-Way Section Program Manager, at 

(208) 334-8832 for more information. 

 

6. ITD objects to this development. ITD will remove the objection if the governing board requires, and 

the applicant agrees to, the execution of a Development Agreement with the City of Middleton binding 

the contribution of the proportionate share amount of $34,020. 

 

If you have any questions, you may contact me at (208) 334-8338 or Erika Bowen (208) 265-4312 ext 7.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Sarah Arjona 

Development Services Coordinator 

Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov 
 

mailto:Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov


Stonehaven 
Proportionate Share Calculation 

(Dated 6/7/2021) 

 

82 Units 
Townhomes 
ITE Code (220) Multi-Family Housing (Low-Rise) 
 
AM Trip Rate = 0.46   
PM Trip Rate = 0.56 

 

 

 



A trip distribution diagram was not provided to the department. ITD must assume a worst-case 
scenario that all 82 residential units will head south on Hartley Road to the SH-44 / Hartley 
Road intersection. This intersection is not included in the SH-44 Corridor Plan because it is 
adjacent to the proposed alternate route. The intersection has been documented as failing and 
is in need of signalization. ITD has already agreed with the city of Middleton that a signalized 
intersection is the preferred improvement. 
 
ITD staff estimates the design and construction costs for a signal at the SH-44 / Hartley Lane intersection 
along with adding northbound and southbound left turn lanes, a northbound right turn lane and 
eastbound and westbound right turn lanes is approximately $1,181,233. 
 

2021 Site Traffic 
 

AM = 82 x 0.46 = 38 trips 

PM = 82 x 0.56 = 46 trips 

 

2021 Total Traffic (Traffic Volumes Forecasted in the Idahome RV Resort TIS) 
 

       
       

                             

 

 
 

 

 

 

Staff recommends the developer pay a total proportionate share of $34,020 (2.88%) towards 
future signalization improvements at the intersection of SH-44 / Hartley Lane. Proportionate 
share needs to be provided prior to occupancy of the development.  

 

AM Site = 38 AM Total = 1,473 AM % = 2.58 

PM Site = 46 PM Total = 1,451 PM % = 3.17 

Proportionate Share for  SH-44 /Hartley 
Signalization Improvements 

Avg % = 2.88 

PM AM 



 

















From: Julie Collette
To: Jennica Reynolds
Cc: Becky Crofts
Subject: Re: Special Events Permits
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 3:17:02 PM

Hello again Jennica,

Here are the events we have planned at our parks this summer and the
dates.  
I will get the special event forms filled out for the Art in the Park & 4th of
July and back over to you by the end of the week.  

In the meantime, please discuss with Becky how you would like us to
proceed for these future events:

Baseball Concessions @Hawthorne Park - Monday thru Thursday
evenings - ran by GMPRD employees for about 2.5 hours each time.
Currently doing this through the end of June. 

Baseball Tournament - Middleton Baseball Association is hosting this on
June 17th - June 19th at Hawthorne Park.  Sounds like they are inviting
food vendors as well.  Not sure about alcohol.  We are still discussing
details -   we just found out they were planning on this.  They also plan to
run concessions out of our concession stand at Hawthorne Park.

Movies in the Park @ Foote Park.  Dates:  (6/11, 6/18, 7/16, 8/20, 9/10,
9/24)

Harvest Festival - 1st Saturday in October (10/2)
Pedersen's Lemonade at Foote Park concessions on Saturday's to sell to

soccer players.  (Now through the end of soccer season)
Sportsman's Outdoor Event at Foote Park (8/27 & 8/28)
Easter Egg Hunts in March/April 2022 and beyond at Foote & Hawthorne

Park.
Plus any other events we might be holding this summer and are yet to

be planned.  
Please let me know how you would like me to proceed on these events.  If
we can do a blanket permit on the Movies in the Park and things like that -
that would be great.  We will work on getting the vendors to fill out their
catering permits as well.  We might need to make new forms for GMPRD
parks.  I noticed yours says "no alcohol" in the parks - which will be
confusing for vendors.  Just something to think about??  We might need to
separate some items out and reorganize all this, since we are two different
entities trying to operate under this ordinance and both of us are issuing
permits, etc.  Which of course will take some time.  

Thank you again so much for your help and efforts on this. I apologize for
the fire drill with all of this coming to light and hope to hear back from you
soon!

mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:bcrofts@middletoncity.com


Kind Regards,
Julie-

Julie Collette
District Clerk 
Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District
310 N. Hawthorne Ave., P.O Box 265, Middleton, ID 83644
208-585-3461
greatermiddletonparksandrec.org

On Tue, Jun 8, 2021 at 2:10 PM Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> wrote:

Julie,

As promised, attached is the code for Special Events.

Here is the link to the Special Event Permit Application:

https://middleton.id.gov/Portals/0/FormsFees/Special-
Community%20Events%20Permit%20Application%20-8-17.pdf

And the link to the Catering Permit:

https://middleton.id.gov/Portals/0/FormsFees/Catering%20Permit%20Application%204-
2021.pdf

 

Let me know if you have any questions.

 

Best,

Jennica Reynolds

Administrative Deputy Clerk

City of Middleton

208-585-3133

jreynolds@middletoncity.com

http://greatermiddletonparksandrec.org/
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
https://middleton.id.gov/Portals/0/FormsFees/Special-Community%20Events%20Permit%20Application%20-8-17.pdf
https://middleton.id.gov/Portals/0/FormsFees/Special-Community%20Events%20Permit%20Application%20-8-17.pdf
https://middleton.id.gov/Portals/0/FormsFees/Catering%20Permit%20Application%204-2021.pdf
https://middleton.id.gov/Portals/0/FormsFees/Catering%20Permit%20Application%204-2021.pdf
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com



































	Staff Report with Appendix - FINAL.pdf
	Staff Report City Council.pdf
	Stonehaven – 11+ acre Commercial Parcel
	Rezone & Development Agreement Modification
	A. City Council Hearing Date: June 16, 2021
	B. Application Request and Project Description:    Request for Rezone and Development Agreement Modification of 11 acre parcel adjacent to the Stonehaven Subdivision (Tax Parcel No. 34443013 – 0 Hartley Lane.)  Applicant is requesting rezone from C-1 ...
	Applicant is also requesting a modification to the current Development Agreement to allow future preliminary plat and development of up to 84 townhomes in the M-F zone. Applicant has submitted a concept plan showing the potential future development of...
	C. History and Current Zoning:  This property was the subject of an earlier rezone and development agreement application in 2012. The property was zoned R-3 at that time, and applicant requested to have the property rezoned to C-1.  C-1 zoning is “Nei...
	D. Property Condition:  Since the time of the 2012 rezone to C-1, the property has remained vacant land with no commercial development. The parcel is surrounded on the north, east, and south sides by R-3 zoning and single-family homes. To the west is ...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are already located down the center of the parcel. Additionally, services are located immediately to the south of the parcel in the Stonehaven Subdivision.
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:  Access to the subdivision is via Willis Road and also through the Stonehaven Subdivision to the south. The street improvements are already completed on the interior portions of the 11 acre+ parcel, but the frontage impro...
	G. Development Agreement:  A 2012 Development Agreement already exists with respect to this property.  Applicant is requesting a modification to add the following provisions and delete existing conditions in conflict with these seven provisions.
	a. 7.3 acres of the total 11 acres to be rezoned M-F Multi-Family. The remaining 3.7 acres to remain C-1 zoning.
	b. Developer to improve the parcel as generally shown in the Concept Plan to be attached to the modified DA.
	c. Developer may develop up to a maximum of 84 townhome lots, defined in the Middleton City Code as “Single Family Attached” in the M-F zoned portion of the parcel.
	d. Any future preliminary plat application must include a special use permit application for townhomes in compliance with MCC 5-4-1 Table 1.
	e. Developer will be required to submit a Traffic Study at the time development improvements begin.  The Traffic study will include the intersections of Willis & Hartley and Hartley & Hwy 44, and any other intersections the City Engineer deems necessary.
	f. Upon development, the Developer will improve all street frontages and dedicate improved right of way to the City.
	g. Upon development, the Developer will pay all proportionate share traffic fees as determined by the Traffic Study and City Engineer.
	H. Findings Required to Approve or Deny the Applications:  Per Middleton City Code 1-14-2, the City Council must make a reasoned statement explaining the basis for their decision. If the City Council chooses to deny the applications, City Council must...
	In making this reasoned statement with respect to the Rezone/Modified DA applications, Council must specifically consider the following:
	1. Does the rezone/DA Mod have a demonstrably adverse effect on the delivery of City services (sewer & water)?
	2. Is the Rezone/DA Modification is “in conflict” with the Comprehensive Plan or “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan?  If it is in conflict, then the applications should be denied. If it is in harmony, then the applications should be approved.
	Because City services are already on site, the City Council is left with considering only whether the rezone is in conflict with the Comp Plan or in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.  To decide this, Council should look to the Goals and Strategies ...
	For instance, the Comprehensive Plan has Goals to promote commercial development, a diverse economy, and employment opportunities for residents. (Goals 7 and 8 in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan).  In light of these goals, the rezone/DA Mod may be in “con...
	However, the Comprehensive Plan also calls for (1) a variety of housing types and lot sizes, (2) multifamily and higher density housing near schools, transit stations and commercial areas, and (3) buffers between commercial and residential uses. (Goal...
	Again, the decision may come down to how much weight Council gives to one “Goal” over another “Goal.”
	I. Planning & Zoning Findings: At the May 10, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission, the Commission denied the applications for rezone and development agreement modification. Minutes from the Meeting are attached this Staff Report.
	J. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	K. Comments from Agencies: A May 7, 2021 analysis from COMPASS found that the mix of residential and commercial uses can mitigate the impact of increased traffic.
	A July 8, 2021 email from Black Canyon Irrigation stated that the District requires an easement for their ditches, and proper irrigation and drainage must be provided.
	A June 6, 2021 analysis from ITD found that the proposed subdivision of 82 townhomes will impact the intersection of Hartley Road and Highway 44, which is already deemed a “failing” intersection and in need of a signal control.  ITD estimates the cost...
	L. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on April 5, 2021. The Applicants are Todd Campbell & Jay Walker P.O. Box 140298, Boise ID 83714.
	M. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     05/30/2021
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 300’    05/28/2021
	Circulation to Agencies     05/28/2021
	Sign Posting property     05/28/2021
	Neighborhood Meeting     03/16/2021
	N. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65
	Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, and 5-4.
	O. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	The City Council is tasked with issuing a reasoned statement for its denial or approval of Applicant’s Rezone & DA Modification applications. Specifically, City Council must determine whether the application requests are “in conflict” or “in harmony” ...
	If the Council decides to deny the applications, State law requires the Council to identify what measures, if any, Applicant can take to gain approval.
	If Council is inclined to approve the applications, Planning Staff does not recommend any conditions of approval because any provisions that are necessary for future development are contained in the DA and/or handled by City Codes and Standards.
	Prepared by Middleton City Planner, Robert Stewart    Dated: 6/9/2021






